2010

Moab Local Green Party, Living Rivers, Julianne Fitzgerald, Natalie McDowell v. City of Moab, City Planning Commision, City of Moab Board of Adjustment : Brief of Appellant

Utah Court of Appeals

## STATEMENT OF JURISDICTION

Jurisdiction is conferred by Utah Code Ann. §78-4-103(2)(j) based upon transfer from the Supreme Court.

## STATEMENT OF ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW

**Issue No. 1** Did the Moab City Board of Adjustment and District Court err when it found that there was substantial evidence supporting the approval of the Lions Back Resort Preliminary Master Plan Development in accord with the Moab City Code?

**Standard of Review** This issue is reviewed under the arbitrary and capricious standard in that the land use decision is considered valid if it is supported by substantial evidence in the record. Utah Code Ann. §10-9a-801(8)(a) and §801(3)(c).

“[W]e review the administrative decision just as if the appeal had come directly from the agency’ and accord no particular deference to the [district] court’s decision.” Rogers v. West Valley City, 2006 UT App 302, ¶ 12, 142 P.3d 554 (quoting Wells v. Board of Adjustment of Salt Lake City Corp., 936 P.2d 1102, 1104 (Utah Ct.App.1997)). This determination “depends on a proper interpretation and application of the law [,which] are matters for our determination, and we accord no deference to ... the Board.” Vial v. Provo City, 2009 UT App 122, ¶ 9, 210 P.3d 947 (omission in original) (internal quotation marks omitted). In interpreting the meaning of ... [o]rdinance[s], we are guided by the standard rules of statutory construction.’ ” Rogers, 2006 UT App 302, ¶ 15, 142 P.3d 554 (omission and alterations in original) (quoting Brown v.

Sandy City Bd. of Adjustment, 957 P.2d 207, 210 (Utah Ct.App.1998)).

In the land use context, an initial determination of whether the decision was legislative or administrative determines the correct standard of review. Bradley v. Payson City Corp., 70 P. 3d. 47, 50-51 (Utah 2003). While legislative decisions are reviewed under the highly deferential reasonably debatable standard administrative decisions are reviewed under the “substantial evidence” standard. *Id.* At 50-52. Substantial evidence is “that quantum and quality of relevant evidence that is adequate to convince a reasonable mind to support a conclusion.” First Nat'l Bank of Boston v. County Bd. Of Equalization, 799 P. 2d 1163, 1165 (Utah 1990). In determining whether substantial evidence supports the Board's decision we will consider all the evidence in the record, both favorable and contrary to the Board's decision." *Id.* at 604. A legislative decision would include the enactment of a zoning ordinance. Bradley, 70 P. 3d. At 50-51. Administrative decisions generally include a Board of Adjustment's decision. Xanthos v. Bd of Adjustment of Salt Lake City, 685 P. 2d 1032, 1034 (Utah 1984).

### **Preservation of Issue**

The above issue has been preserved through briefing in the District Court.

## **STATEMENT OF THE CASE**

### **I. Nature of the Case**

This appeal is taken from a decision of the Moab City Board of Adjustment decision approving the preliminary Master Planned Development for the Lions Back Resort. The Lions

Back Resort is a proposed mixed use resort located in a newly annexed section of Moab City. The issue on appeal is whether the administrative record demonstrates that this decision was supported by substantial evidence and was made in compliance with the land use ordinances of the Moab City Code.

## II. Course of Proceedings

The approval of the Lions Back Resort (“LBR”) Preliminary Master Planned Development (“MPD”) followed a series of meetings between the Moab City Planning Commission, city staff, and various development consultants for the LBR. On June 12, 2008 the Moab City Planning Commission held a meeting in which it considered Resolution 16-2008-- “A resolution recommending the conditional approval of the LBR Preliminary MPD located on property in unincorporated Grand County<sup>1</sup>.” DEF1402<sup>2</sup>. In summary, at this meeting several presentations were given, one commission member recused herself, and five proposed conditions were presented as a requirement for approval of the LBR MPD. One Planning Commission member moved to conditionally approve the Resolution for the LBR MPD subject to the satisfaction of the five conditions, and this motion prevailed by a 4-0 margin. During the regular Moab City Council meeting on July 8, 2008 conditional approval of the preliminary MPD occurred, and the MPD was approved also subject to satisfaction of the five conditions.

---

<sup>1</sup> The land has since been annexed within the boundaries of Moab City pursuant to a pre-annexation agreement. DEF777-818.

<sup>2</sup> The Administrative Record is attached as a CD and each page is preceded by “DEF”. The pleadings are included in paper form in the Court of Appeals file and will be referred to with an “R” for record.

Petitioners timely appealed the approval of the LBR MPD to the appropriate appeal authority, the Moab City Board of Adjustment (“BOA”) on July 23, 2008. A hearing on the appeal was held on August 20 and 28, 2008, and shortly thereafter a resolution was drafted denying all of the petitioner's claims. A written decision was issued on September 11, 2008 summarizing the BOA's decision. R. 27.

On October 9, 2008 petitioners filed a timely petition in District Court against the City of Moab and its BOA seeking review of the approval of the LBR MPD. R. 3-25. Petitioners filed an amended petition on October 17, 2008. R. 29-51. Petitioners sought review under the Municipal Land Use, Development, and Management Act. Utah Code Ann. §10-9a-801(2)(a) (“Any person adversely affected by a final decision made in the exercise of or in violation of the provisions of this chapter may file a petition for review of the decision with the district court within 30 days after the local land use decision is final”). On December 15, 2008, a Motion to Intervene was brought by LB Moab Land Company, LLC, the developer proponent for the LBR. R. 57. This motion was granted on January 16, 2009. R. 97. Petitioners initially filed an opening brief on September 23, 2009, the date stipulated to by all parties. R. 130-156; Stipulation R. 124. Petitioners later filed a second amended opening brief to reflect the subsequent supplementation of the record. R. 317-344. City of Moab filed its memorandum in opposition, as did Intervenor LB Moab Land Company, LLC. R. 381-416; R. 345-357. Petitioners also filed a reply brief. R. 359-369.

### **III. Deposition in District Court**

After a hearing on the motion to supplement the administrative record, extensive briefing on the merits, but no hearing on the merits, the District Court denied Petitioner's request to overturn the Moab City BOA's decision, approving the LBR Preliminary MPD. In its five-page decision, the Court stated that it considered each of Petitioners' claims, but it did not set forth the basis and evidence on which it rejected those claims. R. 419. The Court held that the City had substantially complied with the ordinances, and was not inclined to “nit-pick” for purposes of exposing any error. R. 420. In conclusion, the court held that “nothing in the record persuades this court that the approval of the LBR plat was illegal, based on arbitrary or capricious determinations or resulted from substantial failure to comply with proper processes”. R. 421.

#### **IV. Statement of Facts**

##### **A. The Lions Back Resort (LBR)**

1. The LBR is a 175 acre proposed commercial and residential luxury development located at the trailhead of the Slick Rock Trail in a newly annexed section of Moab, Utah. DEF803. The LBR is a proposed “mixed use resort” that features a hotel, meeting center, restaurant, spa, sporting facilities, housing condominium units termed “casitas,” employee housing, storage units, maintenance facilities, and open space. DEF776. Casitas would be built in various sizes including smaller club casitas, medium sized village casitas, and the larger hillside casitas. DEF699.

2. Other facilities include resort amenities such as a hotel, health club, restaurant, swimming pools, convention center, eighteen units of worker housing, and a five-six thousand square foot service station with washing bays. DEF804, 812.

3. The project area environment, including site and subsurface conditions, were analyzed in a general site assessment conducted by Buckhorn Geotech, Inc. DEF1300. The site is located on a bench above Moab City on the east side of the Moab-Spanish Valley. DEF1301. The area is said to be “well cemented” in an area of dominant features such as rounded cliffs, domes, and arches, and includes the “Lionsback”, “an undulating fin on the north edge of the property, composed of Navajo Sandstone. Many similar red-colored sandstone features stand throughout the parcel. Id.

4. LB Moab Land of Telluride, Colorado is the developer of the proposed LBR and filed its MPD Application on February 19, 2008. DEF536. This developer is the leaseholder of the property and a party to a development agreement with the state agency that owns the fee title, the State Trust Lands Administration (SITLA). DEF533; Development Agreement DEF819-835.

#### **B. The Administrative Record**

5. The Petition was originally filed on October 9, 2008. During the Spring of 2009 Petitioner's counsel made several communications to Counsel for Moab City inquiring when the administrative record would be completed and filed. Separate inquiries through email and telephone were made on February 23, 2009, March 24, 2009, and April 17, 2009 about the

status of the administrative record. R. 160. Finally, on May 15, 2009, due to the lack of response, Petitioner's counsel filed formal discovery in the form of interrogatories inquiring when the administrative record would be produced. R. 161. This prompted City of Moab and Moab Land LB to file various protective orders related to the interrogatories in June 2009. R. 104, 112. On June 29, 2009 Petitioners served notice that discovery was to be withdrawn since the City disclosed that the index of the administrative record had been completed or was close to completion, rendering the discovery moot. R. 122.

6. After the parties had conferred and stipulated to the contents of the administrative record it was filed with the District Court on September 22, 2009. This was nearly a full year after the Petition had been filed with the Court. R. 128. Also at this time the parties stipulated to a briefing schedule for the case. R. 124.

7. Pursuant to the stipulated briefing schedule and administrative record Petitioners filed its opening brief on the scheduled date. R. 130. Shortly before the respondents brief was due instead of filing their briefs on the scheduled date City of Moab filed a "status report" indicating that there were several documents inadvertently omitted from the previously submitted record. R. 157-158. City of Moab indicated that the parties would need to confer to determine the contents of the record and that the briefing should be held in abeyance while the dispute was resolved. *Id.* City of Moab filed a compact disc that contained the records that were said to have been omitted from the administrative record as it existed at the time of BOA deliberations. *Id.* Because Petitioners' counsel was scheduled to be overseas, and based on the

expressed intent of the City of Moab to supplement the record, Petitioners filed a preemptive objection. R. 159; 291-293. City of Moab formally moved to supplement the record with the records on the compact disc. R. 259-266. LB Moab Land formally offered its support to this motion. R. 279-284.

### **C. The Supplemental Administrative Record**

8. In an October 14, 2009 email, City of Moab counsel sent the parties a 49 page electronic file that comprised the first amended record. The explanation provided was that these amended records were submitted to the City as a part of the LBR application, and were a part of the record of decision, but the documents on the CD were pulled from the project file and was not forwarded to Moab counsel's office. R. 163. Various documents and maps were included, such as a preliminary street plan, preliminary grading plan, preliminary water and sanitary sewer map, and a signage and lighting plan. Id.

9. A second version of the proposed supplemental record was sent from City of Moab's counsel to the parties on a CD that included the previous amended portions of the administrative record "DEF01487-01515" and "DEF01516-01533". Pages 1516-1533 were entirely new documents including a Phase Preliminary Site Plan and the City of Moab Planning Resolution No. 13-2008. R. 165.

10. In support of its motion, City of Moab offered the affidavit of City of Moab City Recorder/Asst City Manager Rachel Ellison, who accepted public record requests from a representative of the petitioner, Harold Shepherd. R. 175. Miss Ellison stated that Mr.

Shepherd made several GRAMA requests for the LBR application. She testified that he only requested inspection of the materials as opposed to copies and never withheld any of the materials requested. R. 176.

11. In addition City of Moab also offered the affidavit of its Planning Director, Jeffrey Reinhart. R. 186. This affidavit describes how documents that were contained within the original BOA administrative record were inadvertently omitted from the one originally provided to the district court. *Id.* The records thought to have been offered to the administrative body but omitted from the original record given to the court were attached. R. 188-258.

12. Attached to the City of Moab's motion to supplement the record was a transcript from the BOA hearing where one representative of the developer stated that:

“Let me say there are like 34 exhibits. They range from engineering drawings, they range from architectural drawings, they range from site plans and....”. R. 268. “Open space, this is the open space drawing. It basically defines the various types of open space.” R. 269. One developer staffperson stated that we have traffic and trails and engineering drawings. R. 270. He stated that original drawings have been shown for every meeting. *Id.*

13. In addition, the City of Moab offered a memo drafted by the Architect of the developer Calvin L. Wilbourne. R. 271. The architect responded to Petitioners claims that preliminary plat standards were not met by stating that LBR Preliminary Site Plan and Site Plan-Open Space were materials submitted showing that these standards were met. *Id.* For petitioners other claims, the Architect lists other materials and application materials that were submitted.

R. 271-278. Mr. Wilbourne also offered an affidavit. R. 286-289. Mr. Wilbourne listed the drawings that he prepared for preliminary plat approval. R. 287. He stated that these materials were acknowledged to have been received by Moab City. R. 288. He also stated that the open space drawing was specifically discussed and that he had personal knowledge that documents on pages 1487-1536 were submitted to Moab City, were consistently available at all public meetings, and were available to the BOA. Id.; R. 289.

#### **D. Petitioner's Objection**

14. References to the record during the BOA hearing were non specific. For example, the site assessment for cultural and historic sites was said to be located in a “big book”. DEF463.

15. Also at the BOA hearing on the issue of designation of open space, it was stated that “not one document can have everything on it”. DEF464.

16. Confusion as to what was contained in the record occurred at the BOA hearing when Petitioner representative Harold Shepherd discussed compliance with local ordinances based on his review of the record

“All submittals made by the developer or proponent of the Lion's Back Resort Development entered on 175 acres near the head of the Slick Rock trail in Moab, Ut.....I assumed that I received in response to that again, everything submitted by the developer in relation to the preliminary plat and the development itself. So we cannot prove and I do agree that the appellants have the burden of proof in this case but we cannot prove what is not in the record and that's what our narrative says is that none of this information that the city claims is simply citing the code, none of that was in the record.....”. DEF406.

17. Later in the hearing, Mr. Shepherd stated that many records were not in the plat and were

not in the records provided to the public and it was therefore difficult for members of the public to prepare for the hearing. DEF469.

18. In response a representative from the developer stated that:

“All these documents, large scale were on exhibit and you can't--the word plat is a misnomer when you do a preliminary subdivision. I mean you can't put everything on one “plat”. When we get to the final plat all that needs to be on there will be on there but right now it's proposed many drawings, engineering, and everything that's going into this.” Id.

19. A hearing on the motion to supplement the record was requested and held on February 24, 2010 in front of the Honorable Lyle Anderson. This motion was granted by the Court at the end of the hearing.

#### **E. Archaeological and Cultural Resources**

20. An objective within the MPD process is to:

*“[p]reserve, to the greatest extent possible, the existing natural and cultural landscape features and amenities that may not otherwise be protected through conventional development”.*

Moab, Utah, City Code §17.65.010(D).

21. In reviewing a MPD, the land use authority shall determine whether:

*“The site plan accommodates and preserves any features of historic, cultural, or archaeological value”.*

Moab, Utah, City Code §17.65.030(A)(6).

*“The Significant Features Plan shall include natural and cultural features from the concept site inventory that will be protected through delineation of open space or have been integrated into the design of the MPD by other means. Areas of natural or geologic hazard shall be delineated in the Significant Features Plan”.*

Moab, Utah, City Code §17.65.100(A).

22. During the BOA hearing a member of the development team claimed there are no historically or culturally significant sites based on a site assessment. DEF463. However, there is no survey, inventory, or any other evidence in the record supporting this claim. To the contrary, a LBR “Site Inventory/Vicinity Map” identifies the lionsback sandstone fin as historic or culturally significant. DEF1511.

#### **F. Traffic, Trails, and Circulation**

23. The rule relating to Traffic, Trails, and Circulation include that:

*“The Traffic, Trails, and Circulation Plan shall incorporate the location and design features of all motorized and nonmotorized streets, trails and parking areas; including:*

- 1. Circulation of automobile traffic;*
- 2. Cross-sections of all street types;*
- 3. Emergency vehicle access areas;*
- 4. Parking areas and total number of spaces;*
- 5. Proposed trails or other pedestrian infrastructure; and*
- 6. Proposed links to off-site trails and public access areas.”*

Moab, Utah, City Code §17.65.100(C).

24. In support of this requirement, a Traffic Impact Study was drafted that analyzed impacts to the project at baseline levels and at the project implementation level at key intersections and roadways in the proposed LBR area. DEF1061. The study set forth current traffic volumes, mitigation, project description, trip generation, the effect of project conditions on existing traffic conditions, and future conditions including the primary connector to LBR, Sand Flats Road. DEF1062.

25. A “Preliminary Street Plan” includes a map that indicates the location for street design features along Sands Flat Road, such as guardrails, road shoulders, road striping, and other new road safety measures such as new signage. DEF1487. Within the Plan approximate locations of parking spaces<sup>3</sup> are depicted, the dimensions and cross sections of typical road sections, including the proposed hotel entrance, elevated road section, Sands Flat road, and a typical emergency access section. DEF1487-1490.

### **G. Trails**

26. The project area known as the “Sand Flats Area”, contains the Slickrock Bike Trail, numerous four wheel drive trails, bike trails, that are an important part of Moab's tourist economy ever since mountain biking became a popular sport in the mid 1980s. DEF1540.

27. Concerns about trail access were expressed during a public hearing by a Moab resident where the transcript states that:

“there are times right now when she cannot get across the street and that one of the beauties of this town is being able to walk and go down to the park and access the trail system, which is wonderful, and that she won't be able to do that anymore”. DEF1417  
Statement of Kris Hurlburt.

There was testimonial evidence of potential loss of access to one of the most popular mountain bike trails in the west, the Slick Rock Trail. DEF386.

28. As set forth in the Preliminary Design Guidelines, a fundamental principle guiding the

---

<sup>3</sup> The Preliminary Guidelines document also states that each residence must include parking space for at least two autos in an enclosed garage. DEF705. At least two additional exterior parking spaces must be provided, no on street parking except for special events. Id. It also appears that parking and road acreage is included in a chart. DEF1515.

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