2010

Moab Local Green Party, Living Rivers, Julianne Fitzgerald, Natalie McDowell v. City of Moab, Moab City Planning, City of Moab Board of Adjustment, LB Moab Land Company, LLC : Brief of Appellee

Utah Court of Appeals

Follow this and additional works at: https://digitalcommons.law.byu.edu/byu_ca3



Part of the [Law Commons](#)

Original Brief Submitted to the Utah Court of Appeals; digitized by the Howard W. Hunter Law Library, J. Reuben Clark Law School, Brigham Young University, Provo, Utah; machine-generated OCR, may contain errors.

Joel Ban; Ban Law Office, PC; Counsel for Appellant. Jody K. Burnett; Williams and Hunt; Counsel for LB Moab LLC.

Christopher G. McAnamy; Dufford, waldeck, Milburn & Krohn, LLP; Attorneys for Appellee City of Moab.

Recommended Citation

Brief of Appellee, *Moab Local Green Party v. City of Moab*, No. 20100931 (Utah Court of Appeals, 2010).
https://digitalcommons.law.byu.edu/byu_ca3/2618

This Brief of Appellee is brought to you for free and open access by BYU Law Digital Commons. It has been accepted for inclusion in Utah Court of Appeals Briefs by an authorized administrator of BYU Law Digital Commons. Policies regarding these Utah briefs are available at http://digitalcommons.law.byu.edu/utah_court_briefs/policies.html. Please contact the Repository Manager at hunterlawlibrary@byu.edu with questions or feedback.

IN THE UTAH COURT OF APPEALS

MOAB LOCAL GREEN PARTY, LIVING
RIVERS, JULIANNE FITZGERALD, and
NATALIE MCDOWELL
Plaintiff/Appellants,

Utah Court of Appeals No. 20100931

District Court No. 080700176

v.

CITY OF MOAB, MOAB CITY PLANNING
COMMISSION, and the CITY OF MOAB
BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT,
Defendants/Appellees,

LB MOAB LAND COMPANY, LLC
Intervenor.

BRIEF OF RESPONDENT/APPELLEE CITY OF MOAB

Appeal from the Judgment and order of the Seventh Judicial District Court,
Case No. 080700176, Judge Lyle R. Anderson

Joel Ban, #10114
Ban Law Office, PC
1399 S. 700 E. Suite 15
Salt Lake City, UT 84105
Counsel for Appellant

Jody K. Burnett
Williams & Hunt
257 E. 200 S. #500
Salt Lake City, UT 84111-2065
Counsel for LB Moab LLC

Christopher G. McAnany, #7933
Dufford, Waldeck, Milburn & Krohn, LLP
744 Horizon Court, Suite 300
Grand Junction, CO 81506
Attorneys for Appellee City of Moab

FILED
UTAH APPELLATE COURTS
MAY 18 2011

B. Fees and Costs. In any civil enforcement action under this chapter the city, upon showing proof of a violation under this chapter or any approval or agreement pursuant to this chapter, shall be entitled to recover its reasonable attorney fees and court costs in addition to any other relief authorized herein. (Ord. 06-17 (part), 2006)

Chapter 17.66

PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENTS*

Sections:

- 17.66.010 Intent.
- 17.66.020 Small scale planned unit developments.
- 17.66.030 Large scale planned unit developments.
- 17.66.040 Permitted uses.
- 17.66.050 Standards and requirements.
- 17.66.060 Design standards.
- 17.66.070 Procedures generally.
- 17.66.080 Vicinity plan and environmental analysis.
- 17.66.090 Preliminary plan.
- 17.66.100 Preliminary documents.
- 17.66.110 Planning commission actions.
- 17.66.120 Planning commission procedures.
- 17.66.140 Public hearings.
- 17.66.150 Final plan and approval.
- 17.66.160 Filing fees.
- 17.66.170 Stage construction permitted.
- 17.66.180 Performance guarantee.
- 17.66.190 Bond duration.
- 17.66.200 Default.
- 17.66.210 Final disposition and release.
- 17.66.220 Failure to comply.

* Prior code history: Prior code Section 27-23-11.

17.66.010 Intent.

The intent of this chapter shall be to set down regulations under which development can be carried out that will achieve a better relationship between open space and buildings, greater harmony between the development and the

and intensity, open space or any other requirements and conditions contained in the MPD shall not be permitted without prior review and approval by the planning commission. If approved, amendments shall be clearly depicted as a revision to approved plans.

A. Minor Changes. Minor changes in the location and placement of buildings may be authorized by the Moab City planning department staff where unforeseen circumstances, such as engineering requirements, dictate such change. When in question, the Moab City planning staff may determine whether the changes shall be classified as a minor or major, or may refer the question to the land use authority, if deemed necessary.

B. Major Changes. Major changes, such as alterations in structural types, in the shapes and arrangements of multiple lots and blocks, in the allocation of open space or other land uses which increase density and/or intensity of the project, in project phasing, and all other changes which significantly affect the overall design or intent of the project shall be referred to the land use authority, after which the authority shall consider and shall either approve or deny, the changes in the final development plan. If such changes are authorized, the developer shall submit a revised plan showing the authorized changes. (Ord. 06-17 (part), 2006)

17.65.140 Compliance with the approved development plan.

A. Enforcement. If the Moab City planning staff determines that the development substantially differs from the approved plans, the city shall notify the developer in writing. Thereafter, if the violation or departure from approval conditions is not cured or abated, the building official or zoning administrator may issue orders to the developer including, but not limited to:

1. Revoking MPD plan approval;
2. Revoking or terminating the issuance of building permits;
3. Commencing a civil action to enjoin or abate the violation of this chapter or any MPD plan or development agreement;
4. Enforcing any remedies in any development agreement; and/or
5. Proceeding with any other remedies authorized pursuant to U.C.A. Section 10-9a-802, 10-9a-803.

17.65.120 Development agreements.

Once the land use authority has approved either the (a) phased preliminary master planned development or, (b) final master planned development, the approval shall be put in the form of a development agreement. The development agreement shall be in a form approved by the city attorney, and shall contain, at a minimum, the following:

- A. A legal description of the land;
- B. All relevant zoning parameters including all findings, conclusions and conditions of approval;
- C. An express reservation of the future legislative power and zoning authority of the city;
- D. A copy of the approved master plan, architectural plans, landscape plans, grading plan, trails and open space plans, and other plans which are a part of the planning commission approval;
- E. A description of all developer exactions or agreed upon public dedications;
- F. The developer's agreement to pay all specified impact fees;
- G. The form of ownership anticipated for the project and the specific project phasing plan;
- H. Financial guarantees for all required improvements;
- I. Final covenants, conditions, and restrictions.

The development agreement shall be ratified by the land use authority, signed by the city council and the applicant, and recorded with the county recorder. The development agreement shall contain language which allows for minor, administrative modifications to occur to the approval without revision of the agreement. The development agreement must be submitted to the city within six months of the date the project was approved by the land use authority, or said approval shall expire. (Ord. 06-17 (part), 2006)

17.65.130 Amendment procedures.

An approved MPD, or subsequent revision thereto, shall be binding as to the general intent and apportionment of land for buildings, sewage disposal, storm management, sensitive area protection, stipulated use, circulation pattern, domestic water and landscaping. Amendments that change the character, basic design, building density

17.65.110 Final MPD.

After the preliminary plan has been approved by the planning commission, the applicant shall submit prints of a final plan to the planning commission through the zoning administrator for approval thereof, showing in detail the following information:

A. Site Plan. Detailed site plan with complete dimensions showing precise locations of all buildings and structures, lot or parcel sizes and locations, designations of open spaces and special use areas, detailed circulation pattern including proposed ownership;

B. Building Plans. Preliminary building plans, including floor plans and exterior elevations;

C. Landscape Plan. Detailed landscaping plans produced and stamped by a registered landscape architect showing the types and sizes of all plant materials and their locations, decorative materials, recreation equipment, special effects, and sprinkler or irrigation systems;

D. Parking Plan. Dimensioned parking layout showing location of individual parking stalls and all areas of ingress or egress;

E. Engineering Plan. Detailed engineering plans and final subdivision plat showing site grading, street improvements, drainage and public utility locations. Also, submission of the engineering feasibility studies if required by the zoning administrator;

* F. Covenants. A copy of protective covenants, articles of incorporation, bonds and guarantees, as required by the zoning administrator and/or the city attorney;

G. Title. A certificate of title showing the ownership of the land;

H. Certificate of Acceptance. A certificate of acceptance by the city council for any dedication of public streets and other public areas, if any, that are made by the owners;

I. Accuracy of Survey. A certificate of accuracy by an engineer or land surveyor registered to practice in the state of Utah.

J. Consistency with Approvals. All final MPD submittals shall be reviewed for consistency with this chapter and all preliminary MPD approval conditions. (Ord. 06-17 (part), 2006)

6. Sign lettering style and logos;
7. Accompanying ornamental structures;
8. Landscaping beds around permanent signs;

and

9. Drawings and illustrations of proposed sign types.

H. Exterior Lighting Plan. The exterior lighting plan shall indicate the location, size, height, typical design, material, color, and method and direction of proposed illumination and lighting.

I. Architectural Design Plan. Conceptual architectural renderings or perspective drawings that indicate elevations, exterior wall finishes, and visual character of proposed buildings types.

J. Phasing Plan. If applicable, the phasing plan shall delineate construction and anticipated platting schedule of various sub-areas within the development.

K. Codes, Covenants and Restrictions. An MPD shall submit a proposed set of codes, covenants and restrictions which shall be recorded following approval of their content and the approval of the final MPD. Covenants shall demonstrate compliance with the use restrictions, architectural plans, and attributes of the development, and shall provide a mechanism for enforcement of restrictions, as well as provisions for the ownership and maintenance of common areas, open space, and other project improvements.

L. Other. Any other applicable studies or reports as required by the land use authority or staff, or as required by other provisions of the Moab Municipal Code. Such reports include, but are not limited to, geotechnical reports, soils reports, slope inventories, and traffic impact analysis reports.

M. Illustrative Renderings. Illustrative conceptual design, drawings, visual aides, models, sections, or any other requirements the land use authority feels would help understand the concept.

N. Title Report. The applicant shall deliver an ownership and encumbrance report, title commitment, or similar report showing current ownership of the subject real property and including copies of all deeds or other instruments affecting title to the MPD site. The application shall be signed by the current owner of record.
(Ord. 06-17 (part), 2006)

site, including sewers, water mains, all underground facilities including telephone, cable television, or data lines, location of fire hydrants or other emergency infrastructure.

E. Grading and Drainage Plan and Report. The grading and drainage report shall include stormwater management, erosion control, and grading plans describing the methods by which surface water, natural drainages, flooding, erosion and sedimentation loss, and hydrological hazards will be controlled during and after construction. Individual plans shall include:

1. Existing topography, including elevations, and the clearly delineated location and depth of all proposed fills and cuts of finished earth surfaces, as well as any mapped floodways or FC-1 zoned areas; and

2. Locations and proposed details for storm sewers, detention/retention structures, diversions, waterways, drains, culverts and other water management or erosion control measures.

3. All grading and drainage plans shall demonstrate that the proposed development will result in no net increase in off-site stormwater discharge and no net increase in the base flood discharge depth, as defined in the city's flood damage prevention ordinance.

F. Landscape and Irrigation Plan. The landscape plan shall show all existing and proposed landscaping, planting details, and irrigation. The plan shall include information such as the total number of existing trees on-site, the trees to be removed, trees to be planted on-site, and a plant list that indicates plant quantity, spacing, size, and root type. The landscape plan shall be prepared by a licensed landscape architect.

G. Signage Plan. A signage plan shall be submitted in order to ensure long term aesthetic compatibility of signage throughout the MPD. The signage plan shall describe the location, size, materials and design of all signage in the development, including, but not limited to:

1. Temporary signs and signs that will exist during the sales and marketing of the development;

2. Individual tenant or building signage;

3. Directional and way finding signage;

4. Sign colors, materials, and illumination methods;

5. Location and size;

nificant features. Components of this submittal may be combined into one or more site plans or reports provided that they are clear, legible and successfully demonstrate their purpose.

A complete preliminary development plan application shall include the following components:

A. Significant Features Plan. A significant features plan shall include natural and cultural features from the concept site inventory that will be protected through delineation of open space or have been integrated into the design of the MPD by other means. Areas of natural or geologic hazard shall be delineated in the significant features plan.

B. Open Space Plan. The open space plan shall include delineated areas within the development conveyed to common open space as described in Section 17.65.040(B) of this chapter; and shall consist of the following:

1. The total acreage of open space and acreage of each open space tract;

2. The percentage of open space in relation to the gross acreage of the development;

3. The delineation of all open space types as outlines in Section 17.65.040(B) of this chapter; including:

- a. Listed acreage of all designated natural or naturalized open space, passive recreational open space, active recreational open space, and public pedestrian amenities,

- b. Percent of designated open space types in relation to the total acreage of all open space.

C. Traffic, Trails and Circulation Plan. The traffic, trails and circulation plan shall incorporate the location and design features of all motorized and nonmotorized streets, trails and parking areas; including:

1. Circulation of automobile traffic;

2. Cross-sections of all street types;

3. Emergency vehicle access areas;

4. Parking areas and total numbers of spaces;

5. Proposed trails or other pedestrian infrastructure; and

6. Proposed links to off-site trails and public access areas.

D. Utility Plan. The utility plan shall show existing and proposed utility infrastructure within the

1. Topography at minimum two-foot contour intervals;
2. Slope inventory showing slopes between twenty-five and forty-five percent and slopes in excess of forty-five percent, including areas of geologic hazard;
3. Natural streams, drainages, washes, and mapped floodways or FC-1 zoned areas;
4. Tree or shrub groupings of four thousand square feet or more;
5. Specimen trees; to include all noninvasive trees measuring five-inch caliper and greater;
6. Significant rock outcroppings or formations;
7. Historically or culturally significant landscapes or structures; and
8. Prominent viewpoints and vista areas.

C. Conceptual Development Plan. The concept development plan shall include a conceptual layout of all parcels, open space, rights-of-way, building envelopes, and other features, including the conceptual phasing of the development and a statement of the overall project design features; and listing or depiction of the following:

1. Total gross acreage of the site;
2. Proposed total number of lots or units;
3. Total estimated square footage residential and commercial footprint; and
4. Existing easements, rights-of-way, and interests affecting the site.

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